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RECORD SHEETOBat oni s Tsi khe (Lordds Castl e)

SECTION 1: ASSET R4708 dY2007-N7

Name: Old Telavi

Category: Domestic, Civil, Urban Spaces

Unit of Recording

" NATURAL HERITAGE * MAN-MADE HERITAGE
" INTANGIBLE HERITAGE

Type: Urban spaces

Website:
https://telavi.gov.ge/
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Administrative Location

Country | Georgia

Region | Kakheti (East part of Kartli (East of Georgia))

Locality | Telavi Municipality, City, Administration Centre of Kakheti

Address | N10, Chavchavadze str, Telavi

Geographic Location

Cartographic | Latitude: 41°55'05.0"N
Reference Longitude: 4562 8 6E3 2

Attitude 500-800m (Black Sea)

Topography | Telavi Municipality is located in Eastern Georgia, in Kakheti
region. Its administrative center is the city of Telavi. The
municipality is bordered by Akhmeta Municipality to the north
and west, the Republic of Dagestan to the northeast, Kvareli
(town in Kakheti) to the east, Gurjaani (town in Kakheti) to the
southeast, and Sagarejo (town in Kakheti) to the southwest.
Telavi consists of 27 administrative units . The central part of
the district is spread over the Alazani plain, which is bounded
on the west by the Gombori ridge, and on the northeast by the
Kakheti Caucasus. TheGombori ridge is excavated in the south -
western part of the municipality. The highest peak of Gombori
ridge is on the territory of Telavi - Tsivi (1991 m).

The territory of the municipality has a complex structure from
the geomorphological point of view. The central part of Telavi
municipality is spread over the Alazani (river) accumulation
plain, which is a tectonic unit from a geological point of view.

It is bounded in the southwest by the Gombori range, and in the
northeast by the Kakheti Caucasus. The height of the valley
here reaches 350-600 m. In the southwestern part of the
municipality, the Gombori ridge is cut, which is built with
Mesozoi c and Cenozoic for mat
English) is built with Mio -Pliocene loose sediments -
conglomerates, clays and sandstones. An important orographic
unit is also the Andarazan ridge (the southern branch of the
Kakheti Caucasus), which is the watershed with Didkhevi and
Lopot rivers. Itis built with lias clays. The peak of Big Andarazan
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(3039 m) rises in the northern part of the ridge. In the southern
section, there is a peak called Small Andarazan (2448 m). Telavi
municipality occupies the southwestern slopes of the Kakheti
Caucasus.

Ownership
Owner/Adm | Telavi Municipiaty
inistrator
Name
Owner/Adm | Public Entity
inistrative
Type
Present Settlement, Memorial (ruins)
function/us
e
Former (XVIl) Old Fence and Church (fortification to defence a
Functions population from enemy)
(XVIII) St George Church
(XIX) Craftsmen settlement (XIX)
Dating
Period Late medieval
Date from XVIIEXIX
Date to XVIIEXIX
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Gallery
(Owner: Tengiz Simashvili, professor of TESAU. Some photos are copied from
wikipedia.org and saunje.ge referred to as public)
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Landscape Elements

Buildings

Settlements, isolated buildings, Industrial and cultural
center of wine region. Population: 19,629.

Evolution: The first settlement of current Telavi has been
found in the Late Bronze Age, developed in the Hellenistic
Age, and in the Late Antiquity, a city -type settlement was
formed on its base. According to scholars, Telavi, as an
urban settlement, was founded in the early stages of early
feudalism from the ancient era, in the V -VI centuries, which
is evidenced by the materials found during archeological
excavations and the survived old cultural monuments.
However, it is not mentioned as "Telavi" in the narrative
sources of that time. Vakhushti Bagrationi dated Telavi as a
city to the 10th century. The 10th century Arab traveler -
geographer Al-Maqdisi also mentioned it among the cities of
the 10th century. According to Georgian historical sources,
at the beginning of the Xl ce ntury Telavi is a capital of
Kakheti and becomes big settlement when king Kvirike 11l
united the kingdom of Kakheti and Hereti . In the 12th
century, it was one of the important cities of Georgia with
developed trade and crafts. Trade and caravan routes
passed through Telavi. From the second half of the 13th
century, after the Mongol campaigns, its importance
declined. In the 15th -16th centuries, Telavi was promoted
again. In the 17th century, the further development of the
city was hindered by the campaigns of Iran (during Shah
Abbas I). In the second half of the 17th century, the king of
Kakheti, Archil Il, moved his residence from Gremi to Telavi.
From this period, Telavi became a center of culture and
education. In the second half of the 18th century, Tel avi
was a feudal town. Its architecture was defined by four
buildings: the old rampart, the Batoni s Castle, the
Korchibashvili and Vakhvakhishvili (nobles from Kakheti)
castles. In 1758, t he new Church of Kari was built . A whole
generation of Georgian noblemen was brought up on the
literary traditions established in the family of  Kings of
Kakheti, Teimuraz Il and Erekle Il. In 1758, a philosophical
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and theological school was founded in Telavi, which was
transformed into a Telavi seminary in 1782 .

After th e annexation Kartl -Kakheti by the Russian Empire
(1801), Telavi became the center of the new administrative -
territorial unit Telavi Mazri and received the status of a city.

In 1892, Telavi received the right of city self -government.
Inthe second halfoft he 19t h century,
started in Telavi. A new street ("Upper Bazaar") densely
developed with artisan shops. The city grew and spread
outside the castle walls. The old castles lost their
importance, the walls were torn down, piers of which
merged with residential houses. The inner territory of
Batoni Castle was also significantly transformed.

In 1913-1915, the Kakheti railway was built and Telavi
became the last station of the Thilisi -Telavi railway line. In
May 1918, a theater was built in Telavi. On May 7 of the
same year, the first hospital of the city was opened. During
this period, several schools operated in Telavi: women's
gymnasium, boys' gymnasium, theological institute, etc.

In the Soviet era, Telavi Mazra was abolished and several
districts were created in its place, one of which was the
Telavi district with administrative center of Telavi. In 1947,
the general plan of Telavi was approved . Batoni Castle
remained the center of the city, squares were arranged
around it. Sky-buildings (Soviet style), administrative
residences and Telavi Drama Theatre were built on the
central street. Telavi became an industrial area in which
iron, concrete, spinning mills, marble, wine, dairy, meat
processing and silk factories were operating.

Heritage Tangible, (Vernacular Buildings)

Weather Region of moderately humid subtropical weather. Alazani
(river) plain has a moderately humid climate with hot

summers and moderately cold winters. Average annual air
temperature is 12 °C, absolute maximum is 39 °C, and
precipitation is 700 -800 mm per year. On the Gombor ridge,
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(1200 m above the sea), the weather is moderately humid.
The temperature at the top of the cold is 4 °C. Precipitation
1150 mm.

Soil Alluvial non-carbonate soil of meadow -forest is formed on
the left side of Alazani. On the right sid e is alluvial
carbonate soil. Brown soil is developed in the foothill zone.
In the lower part of the slopes of the Kakheti Caucasus and
ridges, under the broad -leaved forest, forest soil is
widespread. On the calcareous conglomerates of the
Gombor range, there is a humus-carbonate soil.

Black soil and black soil-like soils with their varieties and
differences are mainly represented. A fairly significant area
is also occupied by brown and meadow brown soils with
variety and difference. A relatively smaller area is
represented by alluvial soils.

Climatic conditions are favorable for quality winemaking.
Whole Kaheti region is the best place for producing grapes
and wines.

Flora A large part of the lands of the municipality is occupied by
oak-larch forests and other broad -leaved forests of the
foothills and low mountains. There is a forest of on the plain
of Alazani. In the mid -mountains of the Gombori range,
there are oak and beech forests. 2000m above the sea -
beech forest prevails, m ixed with birch and birch trees. 800
1000m above the sea, the Caucasian slope of Kakheti, is
dominated by oak-hornbeam forest, mixed with beech, in
some places lime and chestnut. 2500m above the sea - there
are forests, thickets and meadows.

Fauna The fauna of Telavi municipality consists of: brown bear,

deer, and roe deer. There are hares, wolves, foxes,
partridges, wild boars, rats, etc. They are found almost

everywhere. Birds consists of: owl, eagle, woodpecker,
crow, etc.

Hydrology Main rivers are Alazani and lori.

Communications | Airport (does not function at this moment), r ailway, road,
track, footpath, lane,

Access unrestricted

Common borders. Common solutions.

D ot « |

The Black Sea Programme is co -financed by the European Union through the European Neighborhood and Partnership Instrument

Page13



http://heripreneurship.eu/

K %
*

*

O @ Black Hea

* 4 K ' CROSS BORDER
COOPERATION

Project funded by heripreneurship.eu
EUROPEAN UNION

BSB831/HERIPRENEURSHIFE s t a b | i dastinghpgrtnérshipsdo upgrade heritage -based offers and create new
investment opportunities in tourism and the cultural and creative industries

http://heripreneurship.eu/

Vulnerability Unsystematic construction , pollution, low quality of cultural
heritage management at the municipal level.
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Description:
Old Telavi" - the western part of the city since ancient times was inhabited by
craftsmen and merchants of various fields. Most of the craftsmen living in Telavi
were related to wine production. Modern Telavi is built on seven hills. The first
settlement on the territory of Telavi appeared in the Late Bronze Age. The first
was inhabited the western part of Tel
hill* is a landmark of the territory of "Old Telavi". There is a beautiful v iew of
the Caucasus Mountains from here. Remains of the castle-fence of the time of
King Kvirike Il the Great of Kakheti are preserved on "Kadori Hill". Because of
this it is also called "Old Fence" district. Here are the ruins of St. George Church.
In these and other churches in Telavi, original Georgian church music and chants
were sung in Georgian.

Kadori Hill consists of two monuments: Fence with hall and St. George church.
According to the plan, the building is square, with three floors. On its two
opposite corners from the outside, a rectangular three -story tower is built, which
is almost completely outside the contour of the building plan. The building is
made of slate, crushed stone and lime mortar. Roughly worked large stones are
also used in the entrance openings and in the arrangement of gunwales. It is
badly damaged. In the middle of the 19th century, it was burnt to ashes. Two
floors and an insignificant part of the third floor have been preserved. The tower
standing in the southwest corner is almost completely destroyed. The entrance
is on the first floor, in the western part of the south wall. The floor consists of
several storage rooms of different areas, which are separated from each other
by walls. In the walls of all three floors there  are wide, almost square -shaped
windows and narrow niches. The tower built in the northeast has two entrances

- from the south and from the west. The floors of both towers were connected
to the corresponding floors of the castle by a door. Various construction periods
are confirmed in the excavated structures. High quality ceramic material found
here, the vessels distinguished by the variety of ornaments and color
combinations. Fragments of clay wedges from the Middle Ages were also found,
which is an indic ator of the existence of a pottery -workshop on the territory of
the kingds residence and s h eNearthe southeastm
corner of the castle hall is the Gorisjvri Church, which was transformed into an
Armenian church in the 18th and 19th centuries, so much that it has lost its
original forms. The church is made of stone (20.8X10.6 meters). It is built with
cobble stone and brick. Itis plastered and whitewashed inside and outside, which
is why it is very difficult to separate the orig inal and later parts. It has three
entrances: west, south and north. All three doors are covered with a semicircular
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arch from the outside and a semicircular arch from the inside. The interior of
the church is spacious with low proportions. To the east, a semi-circular apse
with a projecting balcony, which is raised to the floor of the hall, is equipped
with steps on the sides. An arched window is cut in the center of the apse. It is
much higher on the inside than on the outside. In the apse there is a mass ive,
cubic-shaped table and a 19th-century kankel decorated with vines. In the apse,
on both sides of the window, there is a small niche. On the sides of the apse
there are small vaulted stalls. Both are with apses and are connected to the main
space of the church by a rectangular door in the western wall. In the south wall,
side by side, there are two deep niches. The interior is lit by nine windows of
different sizes and shapes. On the long wall of the hall there are three simple
pilasters, on which the s emicircular vaulted arches are transferred. There is one
pilaster in the western corners as well. They are supported by a vaulted arch
adjacent to the western wall. In the eastern part of the longitudinal wall, there

are sketches made with plaster. A pedim ent rests on two semi -columns, which is
topped by a high-necked dome resting on a two -tiered pedestal, finished with a
pointed roof. There is a cross on the tip of the roof of the dome and on the
columns. There is a niche between the columns. Among them, | ocated in the
north, it is semi -circular in plan and finished with an arch. In the western part
of the hall there was a patronymic, which was climbed by a staircase arranged
in the thickness of the southern half of the western wall. The floor of the church
consists of hexagonal brick tiles.

Old Craftsmen District (B. Cholokashvili Street): Outside the castle the
construction area was mainly done by artisans, who often changed the approved
projects and hid from the ir planners. Artisans were substantially transforming
the official plans in a smart way that were based on official Russianarchitecture
style (so call ed 0 Ru s ghefirsthalCdf thesl8th centusy m.6 )
As arule, only a few components of the plan were used in a reworked style. New
construction of the second half of the 19th century created a completely
different view for Telavi and determined its future city -building specifics. If the
architecture of the city in the 18th century is dominated by fortresses erected

on four hills, inthe 19th century the artistic -architectural appearance of the city
was defined by the residences of the feudal aristocracy and merchants -artisans.
In Telavi, there are many residential houses with outstanding artistic and
historical value, which belong to the first half of the 19th century. Telavi
residences are either one or two -story buildings. Most of them are enfilade in
plan, with balconies and terraces along the entire facade. A double enfilade is
rare. Most of the building has an entrance from th e balcony. The staircase is
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either arranged in the balcony space or placed outside the balcony. AlImost every
house has a yard in front. There was a widespread brickwork, a row of plastered
round columns on a low plinth. A wooden coil is placed on the colum ns, on which
the roof skirt covered with tiles rests. There are two types of building materials:
completely untreated cobble stone and Georgian, square brick. The walls are
mostly made of cobble stone. A series of horizontal layers of bricks are included
at regular intervals. They are gray in color and rhythmically divide the vast
surface of the wall. Bricks are also used to decorate doors and windows and
facades. Most of the apartments along the entire length of Bidzina Cholokashuvili
Street have shutters on the first floor, where the workshops of their owners -
craftsmen and merchants, shops and stores were located. This street was one
of the important centers for determining the socio -economic strength of Telavi.
The potters lived here - makers of pottery , wine vessels, traditional Kakhetian
bowls, wine jugs, pitchers; Makers of wineskins from animal skins; Coppersmiths
- Manufacturers of household metal and vodka kettles and other craftsmen
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Person and Event History

Telavi has been divided into two parts by a ravine coming down from Civi
Mountain since ancient times. One of the most colorful districts of Telavi starts
from the left bank of the river, the so -called "Old Wall", or "Old Telavi". It got
this name due to t he fact that the city wall built by Kvirike the Great. The walls

of this wall are still preserved today. It was called "Old" because in the 18th
century, a new district was established by Heraclius Il outside the Castle -Wall.
Over time, the name of "Wall" was changed, and the street passing by it was
named "Old Telavi". After destroy of the Soviet Union the names of national
heroes were rehabilitated, the new authority of the city renamed the name of
the street "First of May" to Kakutsa (Kaikhosro) Cholokashvili, who was the
national hero of Georgia, the leader of the national liberation movement of 1921 -
1924,

The development of Telavi begins at the end of the Xl and the beginning of the
XIl century. It was the residence of the kings of Kaheti -Hereti. At the b eginning
of the 12th century, when Davit Agmashenebeli united Georgia, Kaheti -Hereti,
ended its independent existence became part of the unified Georgian feudal
state. During the hundred -year rule of the Mongols in Georgia (XIII-XIV), the
importance of Tel avi decreased significantly. In the 15th -16th centuries, Telavi
advanced again, but its progress was interrupted by the four raids of Shahabas |
in 1614-1617. The revival begins after the second half of the 17th century, the
king of Kakheti Archil 1l (1664 -1675) moved the royal residence of Kakheti from
the ruined Gremi to Telavi. From 1703 until the beginning of the 19th century,
Telavi finally became the throne city of the kings of Kartl i and Kakheti. At the
same time, it became one of the important cente rs of political life and spiritual
culture of Georgia. King Heraclius Il made the greatest contribution in prosperity
and development of Telavi He initiated significant construction activities. King
Heraclius renewed Telavi wall (Batonis Tsikhe), which was laid by Archil Il. He
built the Church of the Royal Palace. From this period, Telavi became a center
of art. Archil 1l, Davit Il, Teimuraz Il, Sayatnova and others worked there at
different times. A whole generation of Georgian noblemen was brought up on
the literary traditions established in the family of  kings Teimuraz Il and Erekle
II. In 1758, a philosophical and theological school was founded in Telavi, which
was transformed into a seminary in 1782. In the middle of the 18th century, on
the initiative of Heraclius Il, new settlement created in the "Old Wall" area . This
area, up to the Telavi gorge, bears the name of the old Telavi, because the
conception of Telavi as a sett lement took place in this area. In addition, eastern
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